THOMAS JEFFERSON UNIVERSITY COLLEGE OF ARCHITECTURE & THE BUILT ENVIRONMENT

CABE GRADUATE STUDENT RESOURCE GUIDE 2021-2022

Welcome to the College of Architecture & the Built Environment!

To ensure that students are well prepared to get the most out of their experience, this CABE Graduate Student Resource Guide includes college specific expectations, policies and procedures. It should be used as a supplement to the Jefferson Academic Catalog, https://www.eastfalls.jefferson.edu/Catalog/CourseDescriptions/index.aspx and the CABE Graduate Student Handbook,

http://www.eastfalls.jefferson.edu/studenthandbook/2020-2021/ in particular, all graduate students should familiarize themselves with the information in the Graduate Student Academic Policies and Procedures section of the Academic Catalog, http://www.eastfalls.jefferson.edu/catalog/UniversityAcadPolicyProcedures/GradStudentAcademicPandP/index.html

Good luck as you work towards your graduate degree!

Barbara Klinkhammer, Dean

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Contact List	2
Student Email	2
BannerWeb	2-3
Canvas	3
Student I.D.	3
Attendance Policies & Guidelines	3-4
Zoom Attendance Guidelines	4-5
Academic Advising	5
Academic Concerns	5
Academic Integrity	5-6
Academic Standing	6-7
Graduation Requirements	7
Academic Support Services	7-8
Laptop Requirements	8
Student Organizations	8-9
Health Insurance	9
Lecture Series	9
Children in Institutional Settings	9
Archiving of Student Work	9-10
Conduct in Classrooms & Studios	10-11

CONTACT LIST

All students are required to use and check their Jefferson email for messages from the university, college, program directors, faculty and peers. Please make sure that your program director has a way of contacting you quickly in case of an emergency by cell phone, text, or email. If a student has an academic or advising concern, speak to your Program Director or academic advisor. Graduate Assistants should contact Associate Dean Suzanne Singletary with GA issues. If you are unsure whom to contact, start with Maria Gonsalves-Perkins, the graduate programs administrative assistant, and she will direct you to the appropriate person, office in SEED Center. Maria.Gonsalves-Perkins@jefferson.edu

ce

Dean Associate Dean, Grad Studies Associate Dean, UG Studies Manager of Academic Operations Coordinator of Academic Operations	Barbara Klinkhammer Suzanne Singletary David Breiner Christianna Fail Sarah Bott	215.951.2828 215.951.2794 215.951.2505 215.951.0260 215.951.2828	A+D Center A+D Center A+D Center A+D Center A+D Center
Administrative Support SEED Center and Grad Programs A+D Center and Undergrad Programs	Maria Gonsalves-Perkins	215.951.5947 215.951.2896	SEED A+D Center
Graduate Programs Director, Architecture Programs	Dave Kratzer	215.951.0436	A+D Center
Associate Director, M. Architecture	Evan Pruitt	215.951.0430	A+D Center
Director, Construction Mgt. Programs	Gulbin Ozcan-Deniz	215.951.2914	SEED
Director, Geospatial Technologies for Geodesign	Jim Querry	215.951.0437	Smith
Director, Interior Design Programs Associate Director, Interior Architecture Director, Sustainable Design Director, Real Estate Development Director, Historic Preservation Director, Urban Design Director, PhD Arch & Design Research	Lauren Baumbach Martha Añez Rob Fleming Troy Hannigan Suzanne Singletary Peng Du Kihong Ku	215.951.2806 215.951.0258 215.951.2928 215.951.2531 215-951-2794 215-951- 215-951-2895	A+D Center SEED SEED SEED A+D Center SEED A+D Center

STUDENT EMAIL

Microsoft Office 365 is a hosted service that provides email accounts for Thomas Jefferson University students. Students can access their email by visiting http://www.eastfalls.jefferson.edu/webmail and clicking on the Office 365. Login with email address and password. With Outlook Live, students can easily communicate with faculty and staff members. To install Office 365, use the following link. https://www.jefferson.edu/oir/Office365.html Email addresses consist of a student's First Name.Last Name@jefferson.edu. (e.g. John.Smith@jefferson.edu) If you are having problems with email, contact the Technology Help Desk at HelpDesk@PhilaU.edu

BANNERWEB

BannerWeb is a secure, online system used by Jefferson to provide students, faculty and staff with access via the web to certain personal, academic, and financial data that are maintained in

the Banner administrative software system. Through the Banner information portal you will have access to

course schedules and catalog, register for classes, view your transcript and billing. BannerWeb can be accessed through the following link, https://banner.jefferson.edu/ To login, you need your Campus key that serves as User ID (your campus key sent to your student email from the Office of Admissions), and your password. Campus key consists of your first name, middle name, and last name initials (x can be used for your middle name initial) and three numbers. (For example, jxs123).

CANVAS

Canvas is a course management system that allows professors to post syllabi, assignments, lectures, discussions, grades, and other course information online. Canvas provides you with a password-protected online "classroom" in which you will submit your work and communicate with your instructor and classmates. As a Jefferson student, you already have a Canvas account accessible via the following link, https://canvas.jefferson.edu. To login you need your Campus Key and password. You will receive an invitation to participate in your courses for the semester. To accept the course invitation, click the Get Started button.

NOTE: The same password is used for Email, BannerWeb, and Canvas.

STUDENT I.D.

The Student I.D. will be issued during orientation. For on-line students, please contact Maria Gonsalves-Perkins <u>Maria.Gonsalves-Perkins@jefferson.edu</u>

ATTENDANCE POLICIES & GUIDELINES

Regular class attendance is crucial to student learning and the successful completion of coursework. Depending on the nature of the content, courses in CABE will combine various delivery methods, ranging from "in person" and on-campus experiences to synchronous or asynchronous online delivery, to assure maximum fulfillment of course learning outcomes. Class schedules are the same for either in-person or online scenarios. Graduate students are expected to attend all class sessions in both delivery methods, as determined by the faculty.

Students who have any symptoms that are associated with infectious diseases (e.g., cold, flu or viral infection) should not attend in-person classes, clinical experiences or other activities that put them in close contact with other students, faculty, staff or patients. These symptoms can include but are not limited to sneezing, coughing, fever, gastrointestinal pain, and diarrhea. Students with these types of symptoms should contact Student Health Services (East Falls campus) or Jefferson Occupational Health Network (JOHN) (Center City campus) if these symptoms are present, before participating in any classroom, clinical, lab, or studio sessions, or any activities in which other students, faculty, staff or patients are present. Students who have these symptoms are responsible for notifying their instructors, program or college using the usual mechanisms before missing any scheduled course/clinical education activity, for staying current with course/clinical requirements, and for complying with any other course/clinical attendance policies. Students may be asked to provide documentation that they are under the care of a medical provider (without disclosure of any medical condition).

Mask & Gathering Guidelines:

Given the most recent guidance from the city of Philadelphia, beginning 7/23/21 all faculty, staff and students regardless of vaccination status, are required to wear masks indoors in all university locations for the foreseeable future. We are hopeful this requirement is temporary and we will continue to monitor the infection rates in the region and follow the guidance of the Philadelphia Department of Public Health.

- Masks may be removed to eat and drink in designated areas, but socially distancing must occur
 at all times.
- Masks may be removed in a private office setting if no one else is present.
- Meetings/gatherings/events: Events may occur following guidelines of the local/state jurisdiction and all attendees must wear masks.

To keep you informed about how we are navigating this semester during the evolving COVID-19 pandemic, please refer to <u>Jefferson's Fall 2021 Playbook</u>. Students can access the Playbook by logging into <u>BannerWeb</u> and clicking "Fall 2021 Student Playbook."

Absences: If absent from class, students remain responsible for any missed work, for work completed in class, and for work due and must arrange with faculty for the delivery of assignments. In the event of any extended or repeated absence due to illness, preventing the student from meeting the course learning

outcomes, the instructor in consultation with the program director may advise the student to notify the Dean of Students. Long-term disruption of course attendance due to illness may warrant a Medical Leave of Absence.

ZOOM ATTENDANCE GUIDELINES

Appropriate classroom behavior is expected whether meeting remotely or in-person. Virtual, synchronous classes present unique challenges and require respecting online classroom etiquette to maximize student engagement and learning.

Follow these guidelines to create an online classroom environment that is both rewarding and productive for all participants:

- Be on time in the online meeting room and come prepared with necessary materials and completed assignments.
- Mute your microphone as soon as you sign on and remain on mute whenever you are not speaking. Muting your microphone eliminates distracting background noise.
- Make sure your video is on during class discussions, as directed by faculty, in order to facilitate your participation with your professor and fellow students. (If you have problems due to broadband that require use of the "stop video" mode, inform your professor immediately.)
- Avoid backlight from sitting in front of a bright window. Adjust lighting on your face so you are clearly visible.
- Eliminate distractions by choosing a quiet, diversion free environment, closing all unneeded computer applications.
- To ask a question or make a comment, physically raise your hand or use the "raise hand" feature located at the bottom center of the screen. Unmute yourself and return to mute when you are finished speaking. Remember to lower your hand once you have been called on.
- You may also use the "chat" feature at the bottom of the screen to make a comment. Be aware that the chat box is public if "send to: Everyone" is selected in the dropdown menu.
- Be sure to sign out or "leave the meeting" when the class is finished.

What you need to attend a live online class:

- A compatible device such as: Windows laptop, iOS or Android Tablet, iOS or Android Phone, as determined by course content and the instructor.
- Device must have speakers, a microphone and a video camera. Speakers and a microphone can be
 - built-in or USB plug-in or wireless Bluetooth. Consider hands-free headphones that have an integrated microphone.
- Device must have webcam or HD webcam, built in or USB plug-in.
- A reliable high-speed or broadband internet connection. Enter the Zoom meeting from a good location to your router (maximize your bandwidth by minimizing streaming during lecture). Turn off wifi on your phone to boost the signal to your computer.
- If you drop internet, log back on and re-enter the room.

ACADEMIC ADVISING

Every student is assigned a faculty academic advisor. Stay in contact with your advisor regarding selection of courses, course concerns, or other related academic issues. Faculty advisors assist students with completing their curriculum checklist, however, ultimately students are responsible for being informed about requirements for graduation.

ACADEMIC CONCERNS

When a concern arises in a CABE course, students should consult the procedures outlined in the Academic Catalog and the Student Handbook. For university policies and procedures concerning grade appeals and regarding appeal of adverse decisions, see

http://www.eastfalls.jefferson.edu/catalog/UniversityAcadPolicyProcedures/GradStudentA cademicPandP/index.html In summary, if a concern arises, the student should first arrange a meeting with the faculty involved to resolve the issue in an appropriate, equitable and respectful manner. If the issue is not resolved in a mutually satisfactory manner, the student should contact the below director in the discipline of the course with a complete explanation of the situation, including any available documentation:

Architecture David.Kratzer@jefferson.edu Dave Kratzer **Rob Fleming** Robert.Fleming@jefferson.edu Sustainable Design James.Querry@jefferson.edu Geodesign Jim Querry Troy.Hannigan@jefferson.edu Real Estate Dev. Troy Hannigan Martha.Anez@jefferson.edu Interior Architecture Martha Añez Historic Preservation Suzanne Singletary Suzanne.Singletary@jefferson.edu Construction Mgt. Gulbin Ozcan-Deniz Gulbin.Ozcan-Deniz@jefferson.edu Peng Du Peng.Du@jefferson.edu **Urban Design** Kihong.Ku@jefferson.edu Arch & Des Research Kihong Ku

If you are still not able to resolve the issue, contact Associate Dean Suzanne Singletary or Associate Dean David Breiner. If the issue involves a grade appeal, you will be required to submit your course work along with a written statement explaining your disagreement. If the associate dean determines that the complaint is valid, an impartial faculty panel will review the complaint. The panel may decide

to recommend that the original grade stand or ask the instructor to reconsider the grade. The panel cannot force the instructor to change the grade.

ACADEMIC INTEGRITY

Academic integrity is the foundation of all Jefferson teaching, learning, and professional endeavors and is vital to advancing a culture of fairness, trust and respect. All members of the University community must maintain respect for the intellectual efforts of others and be honest in their own work, words, and ideas.

This policy applies to all full-time, part-time, matriculated and non-matriculated students at Thomas Jefferson University in all of their academic pursuits, including at non-Jefferson locations such as clinical, affiliated, and study away sites. Violations of academic integrity include plagiarism, cheating, fabrication, unauthorized use, bribery, identity misrepresentation, and denying access. DEFINITIONS

- Plagiarism: The intentional use of another person's language, ideas, or other original (not common- knowledge) material without acknowledging its source; engaging and incorporating the exact or closely paraphrased ideas, words, data, or images of others without consent and/or citation to the author.
- 2. **Cheating**: Obtaining, attempting to obtain, or aiding another to obtain credit for work or improvement in performance through dishonest or deceptive means, including feigning illness or emergency.
- Fabrication: Invention or alteration of information, which is false or misleading, including the fabrication of clinical data or changing patient records after the records have been reviewed and/or submitted.
- 4. Unauthorized Use: The use of sources without consent, which includes communication of confidential information without authorization, use of another person's work without consent for the specified purpose collaboration without express authorization, completion of work or revision of work without approval/citation, sharing unauthorized information or material, or use of unauthorized tools.
- 5. **Bribery**: Giving, offering, accepting or soliciting any item of value as a means of influencing the actions of another individual or individuals.
- 6. **Identity Misrepresentation**: Use of another person's name or identity in-person, online, or in signature or allowing use of your name or identity in-person, online, or in signature.
- 7. **Denying Access**: Withholding access to materials, equipment, process (reporting results without performance of test or procedure), or information that is commonly available for use.

ACADEMIC STANDING

Students' academic records are reviewed at the end of each semester, including summer, to evaluate academic standing and satisfactory progress toward degree requirements. The program director or coordinator will notify the student when problems in academic performance may jeopardize a student's good standing. Official notification of probation or dismissal will be in writing and sent directly to the student by the Office of the Registrar.

Probation

Students who fall below the minimum GPA of 3.0 are placed on Academic Probation. Academic probation is a means of emphatically informing students that their record is unsatisfactory while there is still time to remedy the situation. Probation is not intended to be a penalty, but should be interpreted as a serious

warning to improve the quality of academic work. In order to be placed on academic probation by their respective programs, students in the College of Architecture & the Built Environment must have earned a cumulative grade point average below 3.0 for one semester.

Dismissal

Students on academic probation will be required to achieve a minimum cumulative GPA of 3.0 in the number of semesters (fall and spring) determined by the total credits in the student's graduate program. (Student is eligible to appeal the dismissal by following the approved protocol.)

- For students who are required to take 50 or fewer credits to complete a degree program, a minimum cumulative grade point average of 3.0 must be achieved in two (2) semesters, beginning with the semester when the student is placed on probation or twelve (12) attempted credit hours, whichever is longer.
- For students who are required to complete program requirements above 50 credits, a minimum cumulative grade point average of 3.0 must be achieved in three (3) semesters, beginning with the semester when the student is placed on probation or eighteen (18) attempted hours, whichever is longer.
- If a student is placed on a second probation, a minimum cumulative grade point average of 3.0 must be achieved in one additional semester or (6) credits, whichever is longer. A third probation is not permissible.
- Students who are not in good academic standing after attempting the academic hours or the allowed number of semesters will be dismissed from the program, college and university.

Appeal Process

Students will receive written notification of academic dismissal from the Office of the Registrar. Students may appeal for reinstatement by submitting a written request for reinstatement to the East Falls Academic Appeals committee by the date listed in the letter. See the College of Architecture Graduate Handbook for details.

GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

To graduate, students must fulfill the credit-hour requirements and complete the required courses for their specific graduate program. To be certified for graduation, a candidate must have:

- a minimum 3.0 cumulative grade point average (excluding foundation courses and undergraduate prerequisite courses),
- no more than two grades below B- (including fundamental and undergraduate prerequisite courses),
- no grades in courses within the student's program.

Students must also complete all requirements for the doctoral dissertation or the master's thesis in programs that require them.

ACADEMIC SUPPORT SERVICES

GUTMAN LIBRARY (http://www.eastfalls.jefferson.edu/library/index.html) Gutman Library is a gateway to a variety of information resources. The homepage of the library provides 24/7 access to online databases of articles, e-journal collections, e-books, and specialized information to support your coursework. See a list of Research Guides for specific programs and courses. The library building is wireless, has 80 available workstations (PCs and Macs), printers, scanners, and copiers; as well as individual and group study spaces.

THE CENTER FOR ACADEMIC SUCCESS (www.eastfalls.jefferson.edu/successcenter/)

The Center for Academic Success provides one-on-one tutoring assistance for writing, study strategies, test taking, and specific Thomas Jefferson University courses. To make a tutoring appointment, students should stop by the Learning and Advising Center in Haggar Hall or call (215) 951-2799. Academic resources, including information on citation and documentation, note taking, and study strategies are available on the Center's website.

INFORMATION SERVICES TECHNOLOGIES (IS&T)

(https://www.eastfalls.jefferson.edu/oir/TechnologyHelpDesk.html) The University provides wireless network access in all campus buildings. If you need a computer, Gutman Library and Search Hall have open access computers. For assistance with technology issues—INCLUDING PLOTTER AND PRINTER PROBLEMS—students should contact the Technology Help Desk at (215) 951-4648 or send an email to HelpDesk@PhilaU.edu.

CAREER SERVICES CENTER (https://www.eastfalls.jefferson.edu/careerservices/students.html)

The Marianne Able Career Services Center provides assistance to undergraduate and graduate students in the areas of:

- Self-Discovery and Defining Interests
- Major and Career Exploration
- Resume/Cover Letter/Portfolio Writing and Review
- Interview Preparation
- Internship and Job Search Strategies
- Professional Development
- Networking Opportunities: Employer Events, Social Media, Career Fairs

LAPTOP REQUIREMENTS

CABE requires students to use windows-based (not MacOS) computers due to the software (listed in tables below) that our disciplines rely on. Mac users are at a distinct disadvantage and cannot expect faculty to compensate.

Minimum Recommended Laptops are **required** for all undergraduate and graduate students. A laptop certification process that takes place during a student's first month on campus confirms that the laptop meets the standards listed below.

Students in studio-based programs are strongly advised to consider purchasing the **Higher-Performance Windows Laptop**. This applies particularly to **MArch Students**, considering that the maximum life expectancy of laptops to efficiently run required Architecture Program software is 5 years.

The East Falls Jefferson Campus Store work directly with the deans of the colleges to offer specific recommended computer configurations for your course of study. They are an authorized Apple, DELL, and Lenovo Campus Store and offer educational pricing on hardware and software. For your college recommendations and software offerings through the Campus Store, please click on the links below or contact the Campus Store directly at campusstore@jefferson.edu or 215-951-2717.

For specific recommendations for your graduate program, consult the following website: https://www.jefferson.edu/academics/colleges-schools-institutes/architecture-and-the-built-environment/student-resources/laptop-requirements-equipment-supplies.html.

PROFESSIONAL & STUDENT ORGANIZATIONS

Jefferson's College of Architecture & the Built Environment students have a wide range of opportunities to become involved in activities outside the classroom. These organizations sponsor social events, plan field trips, design competitions, and other activities of particular interest to the student body.

American Institute of Architecture Students (AIAS)

National Organization of Minority Architecture Students (NOMAS)

Students for Historic Preservation (SfHP)

Real Estate Development Club

Society of Construction Management

Sigma Lambda Chi International Honors Society for Construction Management Students

Tau Sigma Delta

International Interior Design Association (IIDA)

Jefferson Climate Conscious Collective (USGBC)

Urban Land Institute (ULI)

Commercial Real Estate Women Network (CREW)

GRADUATE HEALTH INSURANCE POLICY

Graduate students must show proof of health insurance in order to waive the coverage sponsored by the University. If you do not, your student account will be charged for the full year of coverage (1/2 each semester), and you will be signed up for the University Sponsored Health Insurance plan and eligible to enroll—but not automatically enrolled

LECTURE SERIES

Each year, CABE hosts a lecture series in which nationally and internationally respected professionals in architecture, interior design, and related fields speak about current issues relevant to our disciplines. Lectures are scheduled for Monday evenings and will be available for viewing online via Zoom for the fall semester and in-person for spring. Students are highly encouraged to attend when the event does not conflict with a scheduled course.

CHILDREN IN INSTRUCTIONAL SETTINGS

In support of the University policy about children in instructional settings, CABE has determined that children are not permitted in the Fabrication Lab in Weber Hall or satellite Fabrication Lab in SEED Center, nor in any class that may be engaging in an activity in which a child may be injured. This policy is intended for the protection of faculty, students, and their children as well as the University's facilities. For the university's policy on children in instructional settings, see the following link: http://www.eastfalls.jefferson.edu/catalog/UniversityAcadPolicyProcedures/GradStudentAcademicPandP/index. http://www.eastfalls.jefferson.edu/catalog/UniversityAcadPolicyProcedures/GradStudentAcademicPandP/index. http://www.eastfalls.jefferson.edu/catalog/UniversityAcadPolicyProcedures/GradStudentAcademicPandP/index. http://www.eastfalls.jefferson.edu/catalog/UniversityAcadPolicyProcedures/GradStudentAcademicPandP/index. http://www.eastfalls.jefferson.edu/catalog/UniversityAcadPolicyProcedures/GradStudentAcademicPandP/index. http://www.eastfalls.jefferson.edu/catalog/UniversityAcadPolicyProcedures/GradStudentAcademicPandP/index. http://www.eastfalls.jefferson.edu/catalog/UniversityAcadPoli

ARCHIVES (Collection of Student Work)

Jefferson University is committed to providing excellent and innovative educational opportunities to its students. To help us maintain quality academic offerings and to conform to institutional and professional accreditation requirements where relevant, the University and its programs regularly examine the effectiveness of the curricula, teaching, services, and programs the University provides. As Jefferson University sees appropriate, it may retain representative examples or copies of student work from all courses. This might include papers, exams, creative works, or portfolios developed and

submitted in courses or to satisfy the requirements for degree programs as well as surveys, focus group information, and reflective exercises. You will be allowed to photograph any archived work for your portfolio. The Program will contact students once work is ready to be returned.

CONDUCT IN STUDIOS & CLASSROOMS

These rules are for safety and courtesy and apply to all students, staff, faculty, and their guests.

CAUSE NO PERMANENT DAMAGE TO PROPERTY.

Do not cut directly on the desks (or Borco). Use a cutting board.

Borco is provided in Smith and Weber, but use cutting boards for model making. At all other locations, use the cutting boards provided.

Spray booths are planned for the near future. Until then, all spraying must be done outside with a drop cloth. This is a Public Health issue.

Ask administrative assistants to borrow cloths at A+D and SEED Center.

Library books and other materials are not to be defaced.

These materials are resources for all. Missing pages hurt everyone. Fines and penalties will apply.

Power tools are not to be used in the studio.

A full shop is available in Weber Hall, with satellite locations at SEED Center and A+D.

Conference rooms at A+D and SEED are not to be used as workspaces.

These spaces are to be used only for meetings and reviews. Chairs are not to be removed.

Vandalism will not be tolerated.

HOUSEKEEPING

Place all trash in receptacles. Areas designated as review spaces must be kept clean.

Housekeeping will dispose of all items on the floor clearly marked "trash" on a regular basis.

Archived work older than one semester must be picked up by the student or it will be disposed.

At the discretion of the faculty, individual work may be kept longer.

Food and beverages are not permitted in the computer labs.

Alcohol, tobacco, bicycles and pets are not permitted in classrooms or studios.

Studio faculty will arrange the desks for their studio sections.

Desks may not be moved. No permanent attachments may be made to the desks or buildings.

It's everyone's job to maintain a professional atmosphere in the classrooms and studios at all times, not just during class.

No profanity and speak at a reasonable noise level. Someone outside your classroom or studio should not be able to hear you.

"IPod's" and computers with headsets only. No sound systems with speakers.

No radios, stereos, or TV sets with speakers are allowed at any time. No headsets are Permitted during scheduled studio hours.

By signing this document, I state that I have read	this document. Sign and	d return to Maria Gonsalves-
Perkins Maria. Gonsalves-Perkins@jefferson.edu		

Student Signature	
Print Name	Date